



AUSTRALIAN AND NEW ZEALAND SOCIETY FOR GERIATRIC MEDICINE INC.

Rules

Adopted on 4 September, 2006

amended 8 September 2008

amended 29 May 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 – PRELIMINARY	3
1. Name and Registered Office	3
2. Definitions and Interpretation	3
3. Objects	4
4. Powers	5
PART 2 – MEMBERSHIP	5
5. Members	5
6. Subscriptions	6
7. Members' Liabilities	7
8. Resolution of Internal Disputes	7
9. Cessation of Membership	7
PART 3– THE COUNCIL	7
10. Powers of the Council	7
11. Constitution and Membership of Council	8
12. Eligibility of Persons for Office	8
13. Election of Council Members	8
14. Terms of Office	9
15. Determination of Positions on Council	9
16. Honorary Treasurer	10
17. Honorary Secretary	10
18. Public Officer	10
19. Casual Vacancies	10
20. Council Proceedings	11
21. Committees	11
PART 4– GENERAL MEETINGS	12
22. Annual General Meetings – Holding of	12
23. Annual General Meetings – Calling of Business at	12
24. Special General Meetings – Calling of	12
25. Notice	13
26. Procedure	13
27. Presiding Member	14
28. Adjournment	14
29. Making of Decisions	14
30. Special Resolution	14
31. Voting	15
32. Appointment of Proxies	15
PART 5– MISCELLANEOUS	16
33. Administration of Association	16
34. Insurance	16
35. Funds – Source	16
36. Funds – Management	16
37. Accounts and Audit	16
38. Records to be kept	17
39. Custody of Books	18
40. Inspection of Records	18
41. Divisions	18
42. Seal	20
43. Execution of Documentation	20
44. Indemnity of Members, Members of Council and Employees	20
45. Dissolution of the Association	20
46. Legal Effect of Rules	20
47. Interpretation	20
48. Notices	20
49. By-Laws	21
50. Alteration or Rescission of Rules	21
APPENDIX 1 : Membership Application Form	
APPENDIX 2 : Proxy Form	

AUSTRALIAN AND NEW ZEALAND SOCIETY FOR GERIATRIC MEDICINE INC.

RULES

Adopted on 4 September, 2006, amended 8 September 2008

PART 1 – PRELIMINARY

1. Name and Registered Office

- 1.1 The name of the Society is “Australian and New Zealand Society for Geriatric Medicine Inc.”
- 1.2 The registered office of the Society is located at 145 Macquarie Street, Sydney, New South Wales 2000.

2. Definitions and Interpretation

- 2.1 In these Rules, unless the context otherwise requires:

“**Act**” means the Associations Incorporation Act, 1984 (NSW).

“**Annual General Meeting**” means the meeting of Members referred to in **Rule 22**.

“**Council**” means the board of directors and governing committee of the Society.

“**Council members**” means the members of the Council from time to time, consisting of the Office-bearers and the General Councillors.

“**Code of Practice**” means any code of ethics and good business practices amongst Members which the Society may have established or adopted.

“**Director-General**” means the Director-General of the New South Wales Office of Fair Trading.

“**Division**” means a regional division of the Society in existence from time to time (as recognized by the Society and being a state or territory of Australia or the country of New Zealand) and, at the Operative Date, consisting of New South Wales, Queensland, South Australia, Victoria, Western Australia and New Zealand.

“**General Councillor**” means a Council member other than an Office-bearer.

“**Honorary Secretary**” means the person holding office under these Rules as honorary secretary of the Society or where no such person holds that office then the Public Officer.

“**Honorary Treasurer**” means the person holding that office on the Council from time to time.

“**Member**” means a natural person who is a member of the Society in accordance with these Rules.

“**Objects**” means the purposes and aims of the Society as set out in **Rule 3**.

“**Office-bearers**” means those persons who from time to time hold the Council positions referred to in **Rules 11.1 (a) and (b) and 15.1** and “**Office**” means one of those positions.

“**Operative Date**” means the date these Rules are adopted by the Society.

“**Public Officer**” means the person appointed by the Council to fill that position from time to time as required by the Act.

“**Register**” means the register of Members maintained pursuant to these Rules.

“**Registered Office**” means the registered office of the Society from time to time and which, at the Operative Date, has the location identified in **Rule 1.2**.

“**Regulations**” means the regulations prescribed from time to time under the Act.

“Rules” means the rules pursuant to which the Society is governed as constituted by this document at the Operative Date and as may be later amended from time to time pursuant to **Rule 50**.

“Society” means the Australian and New Zealand Society for Geriatric Medicine Inc. (or as it may otherwise be named from time to time), an association incorporated under the Act (with registration no. Y1816714) for the purposes set out in the Objects.

“Special General Meeting” means a general meeting of Members other than an Annual General Meeting.

“Special Resolution” means a resolution of Members as described in **Rule 30**.

2.2 In these Rules, unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) the singular number includes the plural number and vice versa;
- (b) words importing one gender include the other gender;
- (c) a reference to a “person” includes an individual, firm, company, corporation or unincorporated body of persons, association, organization or group (in each case, whether or not having separate legal personality);
- (d) headings are for convenience only and shall not affect interpretation;
- (e) references to any statute or statutory provision shall include any statute or statutory provision which amends or replaces it, and vice versa, and shall include any subordinate legislation made under the relevant statute;
- (f) references to a “section” or “s” are to a section of the Act;
- (g) a reference to a function includes a reference to a power, authority and duty;
- (h) a reference to the exercise of a function includes, if the function is a duty, a reference to the performance of the duty; and
- (i) the provisions of the Interpretation Act, 1987 (NSW) apply to and in respect of these Rules in the same manner as those provisions would so apply if these Rules were an instrument made under the Act.

2.3 The provisions of these Rules take effect subject to any provisions of the Act which may apply from time to time. In the event of a conflict, the provisions of the Act shall prevail.

3. Objects

The objects for which the Society is established are:

- (a) To provide a forum for medical practitioners engaged in the practice of geriatric medicine or related disciplines to maintain and improve standards of medical care for older people.
- (b) To promote, improve and encourage training to the highest possible level of medical practitioners in geriatric medicine and related disciplines.
- (c) To liaise with the Royal Australasian College of Physicians and other relevant bodies regarding training and recertification programs.
- (d) To maintain on-going liaison with Federal and State Governments of Australia, the New Zealand Government and other relevant bodies to promote the development of healthcare programs for older people.
- (e) To hold meetings for the discussion of clinical, academic, administrative and political subjects relating to geriatric medicine.
- (f) To promote research into medical and related problems of older people.
- (g) To do all other such things as may seem to the Society incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects.

4.

Powers

Without limiting the powers which are accorded to the Society under the Act or at general law, the Society shall have the power to do all things which in the opinion of the Society shall be necessary or desirable for the attainment of any one or more of the Objects of the Society and, in particular, and without in any way limiting the generality of the foregoing provision, the Society shall have power to do all the following things:

- (a) to employ such servants or agents or other assistance upon such terms and conditions at the remuneration or otherwise as the Society may think proper;
- (b) to purchase or hire such accommodation, furniture, fittings and equipment for carrying out any one or more of the Objects of the Society as the Society may think fit;
- (c) to accept and raise money for the purposes of the Society, including by way of the conduct of appeals, in such manner as it may think fit;
- (d) to cause to be paid from the monies of the Society all the expenses of and incidental to the affairs of the Society;
- (e) to adopt such means of making known the activities of the Society and whether by publicity and/or educational activities in connection with its Objects as the Society may think fit; and
- (f) to authorise any person or persons on its behalf to sign and execute letters, documents and writings of all descriptions including inter alia the signing and endorsing of cheques, pay-in slips, withdrawal forms and other documents relating to finance matters of the Society generally.

PART 2 – MEMBERSHIP

5.

Members

- 5.1 With the exception of the categories of membership referred to in **Rule 5.4 (b) and (d)**, membership of the Society shall be by way of application in such form as the Council may determine from time to time and which at the Operative Date shall be in the form (or substantially the form) of **Appendix 1**.
- 5.2 Only individuals are eligible for membership.
- 5.3 The application to become a member of the Society shall be made in writing. The applicant shall be proposed by one Full Member of the Society. Applications shall be considered by the Council which shall have the absolute discretion to determine whether an application for membership is to be accepted or rejected and, if accepted, into which membership category the applicant shall be admitted.
- 5.4 There shall be the following membership categories:
- A For individuals primarily resident in Australia or New Zealand**
 - (a) *Full Membership*

Medical practitioners who are committed to clinical practice, research, education and administration in geriatric medicine and closely allied disciplines.

The requirements for full membership shall be prescribed by the Council from time to time as it sees fit.
 - (b) *Retired Membership*

Retired Membership status will be offered to those Full Members who have retired from practice, at the discretion of the Finance and Administration Committee.
 - (c) *Trainee Membership*

Individuals who are medical practitioners currently registered in a training program in geriatric medicine and related disciplines.

(d) *Honorary Life Membership*

Honorary Life Membership status will be granted by the Society to those Full Members who, at the time of retirement in the determination of the Council in its absolute discretion, have made an outstanding contribution to the Society or to geriatric medicine. Such individuals shall, for the term of their lives, enjoy (on a complimentary basis) the rights and privileges of Full Membership. Fellows of the ANZSGM may also be nominated for Honorary Life Membership

(e) *Associate Membership*

Associate Membership status will be offered to applicants for membership who are general practitioners with an interest in geriatric medicine.

(f) Fellowship of the ANZSGM

Medical practitioners with recognised specialty training in and primary commitment to the practice of geriatric medicine, who have demonstrated leadership in the advancement of the medical care of older persons, or in research in ageing, in Australia or New Zealand. Nominations for fellowship will be accepted from full members, and fellowship will be awarded at the discretion of Federal Council. Fellows must maintain continuing membership, and must demonstrate continuing commitment to the advancement of geriatric medicine. Fellows may also be nominated for Honorary Life membership at the time of retirement.

B For individuals primarily resident in places other than Australia or New Zealand

(f) *Overseas Membership*

Individuals who are registered medical practitioners primarily resident in places other than Australia and New Zealand who demonstrate a commitment to clinical practice, research, education and administration in geriatric medicine and closely allied disciplines.

5.5 Applicants admitted to Associate, Trainee or Overseas membership categories shall be entitled to all benefits of membership of the Society except for voting rights and eligibility to hold Office. The exception is one Trainee Member, nominated by the trainee group, who is their representative on Council.

5.6 An individual who makes an application for membership, or who is otherwise admitted to membership of the Society, shall thereby be deemed to have agreed to be bound by the Rules as are in force from time to time.

5.7 The Honorary Secretary shall, after the admission of a Member pursuant to this **Rule 5**, update the Register in accordance with **Rule 38.2**.

5.8 The Society shall, at the request of a person who is a Member, give to the person, within 28 days after the request is made, a statement showing:

- (a) that the person is a Member; and
- (b) the category of the person's membership.

5.9 Any Member who has not paid membership fees as provided for in **Rule 6** for a period of 12 months after they become due shall not be entitled to exercise any of the rights and privileges of membership provided for by these Rules until such fees are paid but shall nevertheless remain bound by the duties and obligations imposed by these Rules.

6. Subscriptions

6.1 The annual subscriptions payable by Members shall be determined from time to time by the Council.

6.2 Before admission to membership of the Society under **Rule 5**, a person shall pay the applicable first annual subscription fee and any joining fee (as determined from time to time by the Council).

- 6.3 All subsequent annual subscriptions (by way of renewal of membership) shall be due and payable on a date determined from time to time by the Council.
- 6.4 All subscriptions shall be paid in Australian currency.

7. Members' Liabilities

The liability of Members to contribute, in the event of the affairs of the Society being wound up or dissolved, towards the payment of the debts and liabilities of the Society or the costs, charges and expenses of the winding up of the Society shall be limited to the equivalent of the amounts for the time being due (and unpaid) to the Society from such Members pursuant to these Rules.

8. Resolution of Internal Disputes

Disputes between Members (in their capacity as Members), and disputes between Members and the Society, are to be referred to a community justice centre for mediation in accordance with the Community Justice Centres Act, 1983 (NSW).

At least 7 days before a mediation session is to commence, the parties are to exchange statements of the issues that are in dispute between them and supply copies to the mediator.

9. Cessation of Membership

- 9.1 A person ceases to be a Member if the person:
- (a) shall at any time by writing, resign;
 - (b) dies;
 - (c) ceases to be eligible to register as a medical practitioner;
 - (d) is expelled from the Society by a decision of the Council (such a decision being able to be reviewed by the Members at an Annual General Meeting or a Special General Meeting); or
 - (e) fails to pay any fee, subscription or other amount payable to the Society in accordance with **Rule 6**.
- 9.2 Following the cessation of a Member's membership under these Rules, the Honorary Secretary shall:
- (a) update the Register in accordance with **Rule 38.2 (b)**; and
 - (b) notify the relevant Division secretary of the cessation of membership.

PART 3 – THE COUNCIL

10. Powers of the Council

The governing committee of the Society is to be called the Council and, subject to the Act, the Regulations and these Rules and to any resolution passed by the Society in general meeting, the Council:

- (a) is to control and manage the affairs of the Society including adopting such measures as it from time to time deems expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the Objects of the Society or any of them (including, without limitation, the power to establish Divisions of the Society and to establish guidelines for the conduct of those Divisions and to provide grants to such Divisions for specific purposes, upon request);
- (b) may exercise all such functions as may be exercised by the Society, other than those functions that are required by these Rules or the Act to be exercised by a general meeting of Members;
- (c) has power to perform all such acts and do all such things as appear to the Council to be necessary or desirable for the proper management of the affairs of the Society (including, without limitation, from time to time to appoint such staff for the Society upon such terms as it thinks fit); and

- (d) has power to act notwithstanding any vacancy in its body provided a quorum is present.

11. Constitution and Membership of Council

- 11.1 The Council is to consist of:
- (a) a President;
 - (b) a President-elect or Immediate Past-President;
 - (c) 14 elected Council members;
 - (d) 2 Trainee Member; and
 - (e) up to 3 co-opted Members.
- 11.2 Further to **Rule 11.1 (c)**, there shall be at least 1 elected Council member – and up to a maximum of 4 – from each Division (being an individual primarily resident within the region of that Division).
- 11.3 For the purposes of **Rule 11.2**, the voting Members whose primary place of residence is in the Australian Capital Territory shall be taken to reside in New South Wales, the voting Members whose primary place of residence is in the Northern Territory shall be taken to reside in South Australia and the voting Members whose primary place of residence is Tasmania shall be taken to reside in Victoria.
- 11.4 Further to **Rule 11.1 (e)**, the Council may co-opt up to 3 Members on an ad hoc basis from time to time. Such persons will not be subject to the provisions of these Rules concerning elections of Council members but will otherwise be entitled to exercise the powers of an elected Council member.
- 11.5 The Immediate Past-President shall hold office as such from the time of retirement as President until the President-elect assumes office.

12. Eligibility of Persons for Office

- 12.1 Only individuals who are Full, Retired or Honorary Life Members shall be eligible to become a member of the Council, apart from Trainee members appointed according to **Rule 12.2**.
- 12.2 Two Trainee Members, nominated by the trainee group, subject to ratification by Council, shall also be members of the Council.
- 12.3 A member of the Council shall cease to be eligible to hold that position and shall vacate office:
- (a) if he shall cease to be a Member for any of the reasons set out in **Rule 9.1**; or
 - (b) if such person is absent without leave from 3 consecutive Council meetings and the Council resolves that such person shall cease to hold office.

13. Election of Council Members

- 13.1 Nominations of candidates for any Council membership shall be made in the following manner:
- (a) Notice that nominations are required shall be sent to each Member at least 77 days before the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting.
 - (b) Nominations of candidates for election as Council members:
 - (i) must be in writing, signed by 2 (financial) Members and accompanied by the written consent of the nominee (which may be endorsed on the form of the nomination); and
 - (ii) must be delivered to the Honorary Secretary at least 56 days before the date fixed for the holding of the Annual General Meeting at which the election is to take place.

- 13.2 If insufficient nominations are received to fill all vacancies on the Council, the candidates nominated are taken to be elected and further nominations are to be received at the Annual General Meeting.
- 13.3 If insufficient further nominations are received, any vacant positions remaining on the Council are taken to be casual vacancies.
- 13.4 If the number of nominations received is equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, the persons nominated are taken to be elected.
- 13.5 If the number of nominations received exceeds the number of vacancies to be filled, a ballot is to be held. At the discretion of the Honorary Secretary, this may either be a postal and / or electronic ballot
- 13.6 Balloting lists shall be prepared containing, in alphabetical order, the names of the candidates nominated, and one such list shall, at least 35 days before the Annual General Meeting, be forwarded to each Member who is eligible to vote.
- 13.7 Voting papers, whether physical or electronic versions, shall be filled in and addressed to the Honorary Secretary at the Registered Office and shall reach the Registered Office before midnight of the 14th day preceding the date of the Annual General Meeting and no voting paper, whether physical or electronic version, received after midnight of such day shall be counted as valid.
- 13.8 The Honorary Secretary and President or their nominated delegates shall act as scrutineers and any voting paper, whether physical or electronic, adjudged by them to be improperly or incorrectly filled in shall be invalid.
- 13.9 The candidates, up to the number of vacancies, who shall receive the greatest number of valid votes, and who satisfy the residential criteria of **Rule 11.2**, shall be declared elected.
- 13.10 If 2 or more candidates receive an equal number of votes and 1 or more of them has to be excluded, the Honorary Secretary shall decide by lot which of them shall be excluded.
- 13.11 Only Full, Retired and Honorary Life Members are entitled to vote for Council members.

14. Terms of Office

- 14.1 Subject to these Rules, Council members shall hold office for a term of 2 years.
- 14.2 At least 7 members of the Council shall be elected at each Annual General Meeting.
- 14.3 The members of Council who are due to retire at any Annual General Meeting shall, in the absence of disqualification for any reason set out in these Rules, be eligible for re-election, subject to **Rule 14.4**.
- 14.4 The President shall:
 - (a) not hold that Office past the second Annual General Meeting following that person assuming such Office; and
 - (b) upon retiring from that Office, become an ex-officio member of the Council for 1 year only, during which period such person shall be the Immediate Past-President (subject to **Rule 11.5**).

15. Determination of Positions on Council

- 15.1 At the first meeting of Council following the Annual General Meeting, the Council shall elect from amongst its members the following office-bearers: Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer.
- 15.2 The President-elect shall be elected at least 3 months prior to the retirement of the Immediate Past-President and assume office on retirement of the Immediate Past-President.

- 15.3 The President shall take precedence over all other members of Council in all official dealings on behalf of the Society. He shall be entitled to take the chair when present at any meeting of Members or the Council and shall have a casting vote in addition to his own in all cases of equality of voting on any question.
- 15.4 The President shall be an ex-officio member of the Council and all committees of the Society.
- 15.5 The President-elect shall be an ex-officio member of the Council.

16. Honorary Treasurer

It is the duty of any Honorary Treasurer to ensure:

- (a) that all money due to the Society is collected and received and that all payments authorized by the Society are made; and
- (b) that correct books and accounts are kept showing the financial affairs of the Society, including full details of all receipts and expenditure connected with the activities of the Society.

17. Honorary Secretary

- 17.1 The Honorary Secretary shall keep or shall cause to be kept minutes of:
- (a) all appointments of Council members;
- (b) the names of Council members present at each Council meeting or general meeting; and
- (c) all Council and general meetings of the Society.
- 17.2 Minutes of proceedings at a meeting must be signed by the chair of the meeting or by the chair of the next succeeding meeting.
- 17.3 Subject to these Rules, the additional or specific roles of all Office-bearers shall be determined by the Council.

18. Public Officer

The Council shall appoint a Public Officer in accordance with the Act.

19. Casual Vacancies

- 19.1 For the purposes of these Rules, a casual vacancy occurs, and the position held by the Council member (whether or not an Office-bearer) shall be declared vacant by the Council, if the Council member:
- (a) dies;
- (b) resigns from the position by notice in writing given to the Honorary Secretary;
- (c) ceases to be eligible to be a member of the Council in accordance with these Rules; or
- (d) has been found guilty by the Council of misappropriation of the Society's funds, a substantial breach of these Rules, gross misbehaviour or gross neglect of duty and the Council duly resolves to remove the Council member from that position in such circumstances.
- 19.2 The Council may only exercise the power contained in **Rule 19.1 (d)** at a meeting convened to consider such a resolution. The Council member whose removal is being considered shall be given at least 7 days' written notice of the time and place of the meeting and the grounds upon which it is proposed to consider his removal. Such Council member shall be given the opportunity to attend and speak at such meeting, provided that the meeting may consider the proposal in the absence of the Council member.

- 19.3 In the event of a vacancy occurring in the Council, such vacancy shall be filled by an appointee of the Council from amongst candidates nominated by the Council. Such appointee shall hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

20. Council Proceedings

- 20.1 The Council may meet together for the dispatch of business and adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings as it thinks fit.
- 20.2 A Council member may participate in a meeting of the Council by any communication system which enables the Council member to hear and be heard by each of the other Council members participating in the meeting and which is approved by the Council and made known to each Council member for the purpose of any meeting of the Council.
- 20.3 A Council meeting may be convened by the President, the Honorary Secretary or on the written requisition of not less than 3 Council members.
- 20.4 At all meetings of the Council the President, or in his absence, the President-elect shall preside. In the event of both the President and President-elect being absent or unwilling to act, the Council shall elect a chair from amongst the Council members present.
- 20.5 The Council shall meet at least 4 times in each calendar year.
- 20.6 Subject to these Rules, questions arising at a Council meeting shall be decided by a majority of Council members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Council. In the case of an equality of votes the chair shall have a second or casting vote.
- 20.7 At least 7 days prior to the date of each Council meeting, the Honorary Secretary shall forward to each Council member a written notice (by such means as the Council may determine from time to time) requesting his attendance at such Council meeting.
- 20.8 Each Council member, apart from Trainee members, shall have 1 vote at Council meetings
- 20.9 At a meeting of the Council, 6 Council members shall form a quorum.
- 20.10 No business is to be transacted by the Council unless a quorum is present and if, within half an hour of the time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting is to stand adjourned to the same place and at the same hour of the same day in the following week.
- 20.11 If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour of the time appointed for the meeting, the meeting is to be dissolved.
- 20.12 A resolution in writing (whether on the same document or on one or more documents in identical terms) signed by all members of the Council for the time being who are entitled to vote on the resolution shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Council duly called and constituted. Any such resolution shall be tabled at the next meeting of the Council and recorded in the minutes of that meeting.

21. Committees

- 21.1 The Council may, by instrument in writing, delegate to one or more committees of the Council the exercise of such of the functions of the Council as are specified in the instrument, other than:
- (a) this power of delegation; and
 - (b) a function which is duly imposed on the Council by the Act or by any other law.
- 21.2 A function, the exercise of which has been delegated to a committee under this **Rule 21** may, while the delegation remains unrevoked, be exercised from time to time by the committee in accordance with the terms of the delegation.

- 21.3 A delegation under this section may be made subject to such conditions or limitations as to the exercise of any function, or as to time or circumstances, as may be specified in the instrument of delegation.
- 21.4 Despite any delegation under this **Rule 21**, the Council may continue to exercise any function delegated.
- 21.5 Any act or thing done or suffered by a committee acting in the exercise of a delegation under this **Rule 21** has the same force and effect as it would have if it had been done or suffered by the Council.
- 21.6 The Council may, by instrument in writing, revoke wholly or in part any delegation under this **Rule 21**.
- 21.7 A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper.
- 21.8 Each committee shall include at least 1 Council member.
- 21.9 A committee must exercise its powers in accordance with any direction of the Council.
- 21.10 A quorum for a meeting of a committee is the number of members of the committee that is determined by the Council or, in the absence of a determination, 2.
- 21.11 An Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Treasurer and at least 1 other Council member.

PART 4 – GENERAL MEETINGS

22. Annual General Meeting – Holding of

- 22.1 The Society must, at least once in each calendar year and within the period of 6 months after the expiration of each financial year of the Society, convene an Annual General Meeting.
- 22.2 **Rule 22.1** has effect subject to any extension or permission granted by the Director-General under section 26(3) of the Act.

23. Annual General Meetings – Calling of and Business at

- 23.1 The Annual General Meeting of the Society is, subject to the Act and to **Rule 22**, to be convened on such date and at such place and time as the Council thinks fit.
- 23.2 In addition to any other business of which due notice shall have been given and which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting, the business of an Annual General Meeting is to include the following:
 - (a) to confirm the minutes of the last preceding Annual General Meeting and of any Special General Meeting held since that meeting;
 - (b) to receive from the Council reports on the activities of the Society during the last preceding financial year;
 - (c) to elect members of the Council (so far as may be applicable under these Rules); and
 - (d) to receive and consider the statement which is required to be submitted to Members under section 26(6) of the Act.
- 23.3 An Annual General Meeting must be specified as such in the notice convening it.

24. Special General Meetings – Calling of

- 24.1 The Council or the President may, whenever it or he thinks fit (as applicable), convene a Special General Meeting.
- 24.2 The Council must, on the requisition in writing of at least 5% of the total number of Members, convene a Special General Meeting.

- 24.3 A requisition of Members for a Special General Meeting:
- (a) must state the purpose or purposes of the meeting;
 - (b) must be signed by the Members making the requisition;
 - (c) must be lodged with the Honorary Secretary; and
 - (d) may consist of several documents in a similar form, each signed by one or more of the Members making the requisition.
- 24.4 If the Council fails to convene a Special General Meeting to be held within 1 month after the date on which a requisition of Members for the meeting is lodged with the Honorary Secretary, any one or more of the Members who made the requisition may convene a Special General Meeting to be held not later than 3 months after that date.
- 24.5 A Special General Meeting convened by Members pursuant to these Rules shall be convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which those meetings are convened by the Council.

25. Notice

- 25.1 Except if the nature of the business proposed to be dealt with at a general meeting requires a Special Resolution, the Honorary Secretary must, at least 14 days before the date fixed for the holding of the general meeting, give a notice to each Member specifying the place, date and time of the meeting and the nature of the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.
- 25.2 If the nature of the business proposed to be dealt with at a general meeting requires a Special Resolution, the Honorary Secretary must, at least 21 days before the date fixed for the holding of the general meeting, cause notice to be given to each Member specifying, in addition to the matters required under **Rule 25.1**, the intention to propose the resolution as a Special Resolution.
- 25.3 No business other than that specified in the notice convening a general meeting is to be transacted at the meeting except, in the case of an Annual General Meeting, business which may be transacted under **Rule 23.2**.
- 25.4 A Member desiring to bring any business before a general meeting (being business appropriate for that purpose) must give notice in writing of that business to the Honorary Secretary who must include that business in the next notice calling a general meeting given after receipt of the notice from the Member.
- 25.5 The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting by any Member shall not invalidate the proceedings at any meeting.

26. Procedure

- 26.1 All business that is transacted at a Special General Meeting and all business that is transacted at the Annual General Meeting, with the exception of that referred to in paragraphs (a)-(d) of **Rule 23.2** as being the ordinary business of the Annual General Meeting, shall be deemed to be special business.
- 26.2 No item of business is to be transacted at a general meeting unless a quorum of Members entitled under these Rules to vote is present during the time the meeting is considering that item.
- 26.3 Five percent of the Membership (being Members entitled under these Rules to vote at a general meeting) present in person or by proxy or attorney constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of a general meeting.
- 26.4 For the avoidance of any doubt, for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present, a person attending as a proxy or attorney shall be deemed to be a Member.
- 26.5 If within half an hour after the appointed time for the commencement of a general meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting:

- (a) if convened on the requisition of Members, is to be dissolved; and
- (b) in any other case, is to stand adjourned to the same day in the following week at the same time and (unless another place is specified at the time of the adjournment by the person presiding at the meeting or communicated by written notice to Members given before the day to which the meeting is adjourned) at the same place.

27. Presiding Member

Subject to anything to the contrary in these Rules:

- (a) the President or, in the President's absence, the President-elect, is to preside as chair at each general meeting of the Society;
- (b) if the President and the President-elect are absent or unwilling to act, the Members present must elect one of their number to preside as chair at the meeting; and
- (c) in the case of an equality of votes on any question at any general meeting, the chair of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

28. Adjournment

- 28.1 The chair of a general meeting at which a quorum is present may, with the consent of the majority of Members present at the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and place to place, but no business is to be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting at which the adjournment took place.
- 28.2 If a general meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, the Honorary Secretary must give notice of the adjourned meeting, in the same manner as if the meeting were an original meeting, to each Member stating the place, date and time of the meeting and the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting.
- 28.3 Except as provided in **Rules 28.1 and 28.2**, notice of an adjournment of a general meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting is not required to be given.

29. Making of Decisions

- 29.1 A question arising at a general meeting of the Society is to be determined on a show of hands and, unless before or on the declaration of the show of hands a poll is demanded, a declaration by the chair that a resolution has, on a show of hands, been carried or carried unanimously or carried by a particular majority or lost, or an entry to that effect in the minute book of the Society, is evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against that resolution.
- 29.2 At a general meeting of the Society, a poll may be demanded by the chair or by at least 3 Members present at the meeting in person or by proxy or attorney.
- 29.3 If a poll is demanded at a general meeting, the poll must be taken:
 - (a) immediately, in the case of a poll which relates to the election of the chair of the meeting or to the question of an adjournment; or
 - (b) in any other case, in such manner and at such time, either at once or after an interval or adjournment or otherwise, as the chair directs,and the resolution of the poll on the matter is taken to be the resolution of the meeting on that matter.
- 29.4 The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

30. Special Resolution

A resolution of the Society is a Special Resolution:

- (a) if it is passed by a majority which comprises at least three-quarters of such Members as, being entitled under these Rules so to do, vote in person or by proxy or attorney at a general meeting of which at least 21 days' written notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution was given in accordance with these Rules; or
- (b) where it is made to appear to the Director-General that it is not practicable for the resolution to be passed in the manner specified in paragraph (a), if the resolution is passed in a manner specified by the Director-General.

31.

Voting

- 31.1 At a meeting of Members, each Member entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy or attorney.
- 31.2 Only Full, Retired and Honorary Life Members shall be entitled to vote at a general meeting.
- 31.3 On any question arising at a general meeting of the Society, a Member has 1 vote only, whether on a show of hands or a poll.
- 31.4 All votes must be given personally or by proxy or attorney but no Member may hold more than 5 proxies.
- 31.5 A Member is not entitled to attend or vote (whether personally or by proxy or attorney) at any general meeting of the Society unless all monies due and payable by the Member to the Society have been duly paid, other than the amount of the annual subscription payable in respect of the current financial year.
- 31.6 An objection may be raised to the qualification of a voter only at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered. Any such objection shall be referred to the chair of the meeting whose decision is final. A vote not disallowed pursuant to such an objection is valid for all purposes.

32.

Appointment of Proxies

- 32.1 Each Member is entitled to appoint another Member as proxy in accordance with this **Rule 32**.
- 32.2 An instrument appointing a proxy:
 - (a) shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in writing;
 - (b) may specify the manner in which the proxy is to vote in respect of a particular resolution and, where an instrument of proxy so provides, the proxy is not entitled to vote on the resolution except as specified in the instrument;
 - (c) shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll; and
 - (d) shall be in the form (or substantially the form) set out in **Appendix 2** to these Rules or in such other form as may be approved by the Council from time to time.
- 32.3 An instrument appointing an attorney or proxy shall not be treated as valid unless the instrument and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which the instrument is signed or a notorially certified copy of that power of attorney or other authority (if any) is or are deposited – no later than 5.00 pm on the day before the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote – at the Registered Office or at such other place as is specified for that purpose in the notice convening the meeting.
- 32.4 A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy or a power of attorney is valid notwithstanding the previous death or unsoundness of mind of the principal, the revocation of the instrument (or of the authority under which the instrument was executed) or of the power, if no intimation in writing of the death, unsoundness of mind or revocation has been received by the

Society at the Registered Office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the instrument is used or the power is exercised.

PART 5 - MISCELLANEOUS

33. Administration of Association

- 33.1 Subject to these Rules, the Society is to be administered by the Council, acting pursuant to **Rule 10**.
- 33.2 The role of the Council is to determine Society policy, acting pursuant to **Rule 10**.

34. Insurance

The Society may effect and maintain insurance.

35. Funds – Source

- 35.1 The funds of the Society are to be derived from subscriptions of Members pursuant to these Rules, donations, payments made to the Society for the provision of services by the Society, payments made to the Society in pursuance of arrangements to further the Objects, moneys raised by the annual scientific meeting and, subject to any resolution passed by the Society in general meeting, such other sources as the Council determines from time to time.
- 35.2 All money received by the Society must be deposited as soon as practicable and without deduction to the credit of the Society's bank account.
- 35.3 The Society must, as soon as practicable after receiving any money, issue an appropriate receipt or tax invoice.

36. Funds – Management

- 36.1 Subject to any resolution passed by the Society in general meeting, the funds of the Society are to be used in pursuance of the Objects in such manner as the Council determines. Such funds will be under the control of the Council.
- 36.2 The Society shall be a non-profit making organization. No part of the income and property of the Society shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to the Members, provided that nothing in these Rules shall prevent the payment in good faith of remuneration to any Office-bearer or other member of the Council or servant of the Society in return for any services actually rendered to the Society or to any person in return for any services or goods sold to the Society nor prevent the payment of any expenses incurred on behalf of the Society, reimbursement of out-of pocket expenses incurred in the course of business conducted on behalf of the Society or interest on money borrowed from or lawfully due to any Member.
- 36.3 Subject to **Rule 36.4**, all cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, promissory notes and other negotiable instruments shall be signed by two members of the Council.
- 36.4 Any cheque in payment of expenses relating to the annual scientific meeting must be signed by any 2 Council members or one Council member together with the appointed convenor of the scientific meeting.

37. Accounts and Audit

- 37.1 The financial year of the Society shall commence on 1 January in each year and end on 31 December in that year.
- 37.2 The funds administered pursuant to **Rule 36** will be the subject of accounting records maintained at the Registered Office.

- 37.3 The Society shall keep:
- (a) such accounting records as correctly record and explain the transactions and financial position of the Society;
 - (b) its accounting records in such a manner as will enable accounts and statements to be prepared from them; and
 - (c) its accounting records in such a manner as will enable the accounts of the Society to be conveniently and properly audited in accordance with these Rules.
- 37.4 As soon as practicable after the end of each financial year, the Society shall:
- (a) cause to be prepared from the accounting records kept under **Rule 37.3** in relation to the financial year, such accounts and other statements (in relation to the financial year) as the Council shall determine be prepared from time to time or which are otherwise required by the Act; and
 - (b) include in the accounts (for comparative purposes) the relevant figures from the accounts, prepared by the Society under this **Rule 37.4**, in relation to the preceding financial year.
- 37.5 The accounts prepared pursuant to **Rule 37.4** will be audited annually in respect of each financial year by an auditor appointed by the Council for that purpose from time to time.
- 37.6 At the Annual General Meeting, the Members shall confirm the appointment of one or more auditors of the Society who shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting.
- 37.7 In the event of a vacancy occurring for any reason in the position of auditor, such vacancy shall be filled by an appointee of the Council, such appointee to hold that office until the next Annual General Meeting.
- 37.8 The auditor shall, for audit purposes only, at all reasonable times have access to the books, minutes and accounts of the Society. The Honorary Secretary shall provide all reasonable assistance in connection with the provision of information, books and records to enable the audit to be conducted.
- 37.9 It shall be the function of the auditor to certify the annual financial statements of the Society to be correct or otherwise and to produce such reports and offer such advice to the Council in relation to the financial affairs of the Society as the Council shall require.
- 37.10 The Society, by the Council, shall provide or otherwise make available (including by electronic means) free of charge to Members:
- (a) a copy of the report of the auditor in relation to the inspection and audit of the accounting records kept by the Society in relation to a financial year; and
 - (b) a copy of the accounts and statements prepared to which the report relates, within 8 weeks after the relevant auditor's report has been provided to the Society.
- 37.11 The Council may resolve to instead provide the Members with a summary of the report, accounts and statements referred to in **Rule 37.10**.
- 37.12 The Society, by its Public Officer, shall within 1 month after each Annual General Meeting, lodge with the Director-General the statement and all other documents prescribed by section 27 of the Act.

38. Records to be kept

- 38.1 The Society shall keep the following records, updated as required by these Rules and the Act:
- (a) a register of its Members, showing the full name, address (residential and postal), facsimile and/or electronic address (if any), date of membership, category of membership and applicable Division of each Member;

- (b) a list of the names, addresses (residential and postal), facsimile and/or electronic address (if any) and occupations of Council members and their Offices (if applicable) together with the dates on which they were elected and the dates they ceased to hold office;
- (c) a record of the name and office address of each Division or other branch of the Society;
- (d) a record of each election of a member of Council that must, under these Rules, be held during each calendar year; and
- (e) such other records as are prescribed by the Regulations from time to time.

38.2 The Society, by the Honorary Secretary, shall:

- (a) enter in the Register the full name, address (residential and postal), facsimile and/or electronic address (if any), date of membership, category of membership and applicable Division of each person who becomes a Member, within 28 days after the person becomes a Member;
- (b) enter in the Register the date of cessation of membership of each person who ceases to be a Member, within 28 days after the person ceases to be a Member; and
- (c) enter in the Register any change in the particulars shown on the Register within 28 days after the matters necessitating the change become known to the Society.

39. Custody of Books

Except as otherwise provided by these Rules, the Public Officer must keep in his custody or under his control (including by keeping them at the Registered Office) all records, books (including the Register) and other documents and papers relating to the Society.

40. Inspection of Records

A Member has the right to inspect any records, books (including the Register) or other documents and papers of the Society, free of charge, at any reasonable hour except those records, books and other documents and papers which the Council determines are of a confidential nature (other than the financial records of the Society or as provided by the Act or authorized by the Council or by the Society in general meeting).

41. Divisions

- 41.1 The objects of each Division shall be to carry out the Objects of the Society in respect of matters directly affecting Members registered in the region of the Division.
- 41.2 Divisions may, with the approval of the Council, conduct activities to raise funds for specific purposes designed to further the Objects of the Society.
- 41.3 Membership of each Division shall comprise Members who are registered in the region of that Division, or are taken, because of **Rule 11.3**, to reside and be registered in the region of that Division. A list of such Members will be provided to the Division secretary at least annually.
- 41.4 Each Division shall hold an annual general meeting once in each calendar year. Six members shall constitute a quorum. Notice of each annual general meeting shall be by notice provided to the registered address of each Division member at least 14 days prior to the date appointed for the meeting.
- 41.5 The business to be conducted at a Division annual general meeting shall include:
 - (a) confirmation of the minutes of the previous Division annual general meeting;
 - (b) consideration, approval and adoption of a report by the Division president of the Division's activities since the previous Division annual general meeting;

- (c) consideration, approval and adoption of a report by the Division's treasurer on the financial activities of the Division since the previous Division annual general meeting, including a financial statement for the preceding financial year.
 - (d) election of one half of a Division committee, with members each serving a 2 year term. The Division committee shall consist of 6 members; and
 - (e) any other business as included by the Division secretary in the notice of meeting.
- 41.6 The Division may conduct other general meetings for purposes consistent with the Objects of the Society.
- 41.7 At a time no later than 28 days after the Division annual general meeting, the members elected to the Division committee shall meet and elect, from their ranks, the following office-bearers who will serve not more than 4 consecutive years: president, secretary and treasurer.
- 41.8 Members of the Council shall be ex-officio members of the Division committee in their region of residence or deemed region of residence under **Rule 11.3**.
- 41.9 Meetings of the Division committee shall be chaired by the president or, in his absence, a committee member elected by those present.
- 41.10 Three members present at a meeting of the Division committee shall constitute a quorum. No business is to be transacted by a Division committee unless a quorum is present.
- 41.11 The Division committee may co-opt members of the Division and appoint sub-committees to further the aims of the Society, including the conduct of seminars, training courses and the like.
- 41.12 The Division committee shall meet at least 4 times each year. Written notice of such meetings shall be given by the Division secretary at least 7 days before the date of the meeting. The chair of the meeting, in the event of an equality of votes on any question, shall have the opportunity to exercise a casting vote.
- 41.13 The Division secretary shall keep minutes of the proceedings of each committee meeting, together with a record of the names of those present and may also, when required, act as an executive officer for the committee.
- 41.14 Within 28 days of a Division annual general meeting, the Division committee shall forward to the Honorary Secretary the following information:
- (a) the names of members most recently added to the Division committee and the current list of committee members; and
 - (b) the names of the committee's office-bearers.
- 41.15 Each Division shall keep books of account which duly record the receipt of all moneys and payment of all amounts authorized by the Division committee. Two members of the Division committee will be appointed as signatories. All cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, promissory notes or other negotiable instruments shall be signed by 2 members of the Division committee and approved by the Division committee at its meetings. The Division treasurer shall provide a financial statement to the Council within 28 days of the end of the financial year. The Division committee may reimburse reasonable expenses incurred by members on its behalf.
- 41.16 A Division may from time to time make, vary and rescind rules to put into effect the powers and authorities thereof, provided that such rules are not inconsistent with or repugnant to these Rules.
- 41.17 A Division secretary shall forward to the members of the Division such notices or communications as the Honorary Secretary (acting on instructions from the Council) may require from time to time.
- 41.18 A Division secretary shall within 7 days of the holding of any meeting of the Division or any sub-committee thereof forward to the Honorary Secretary a copy of the minutes of such meeting.

42. Seal

- 42.1 The Council may, and shall if required by the Act, adopt from time to time one or more official seals to be used for the execution of documents by the Society.
- 42.2 The Public Officer shall have the safe custody of all of the seals adopted under **Rule 42.1**.
- 42.3 The seal must not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of the Council and it shall only be affixed to a document either in the presence of at least 2 Council members or 1 Council member and the Public Officer or Honorary Secretary.

43. Execution of Documentation

Subject to the Act and these Rules, documentation may be executed by or on behalf of the Society under seal (in accordance with **Rule 42**) or under the hand of a duly authorized Council member.

44. Indemnity of Members, Members of Council and Employees

Every Member, member of Council and employee of the Society shall be indemnified out of the Society's funds against all costs, losses, charges and expenses which any such Member, member of Council or employee may incur or become liable for by reason of any contract entered into or act or deed done by him in the discharge of any duty in accordance with these Rules.

45. Dissolution of the Association

- 45.1 The Society may be dissolved by a Special Resolution at a general meeting convened for that purpose.
- 45.2 In the event of the Society being dissolved, the amount which remains after such dissolution and the satisfaction of all debts and liabilities shall not be paid or distributed among the Members but shall be given or transferred to some other organization which has similar objects and which has rules prohibiting the distribution of its assets and income to its members, such organization to be determined by the Members at or before the time of dissolution as resolved by two-thirds of the Members (being entitled under these Rules so to vote) present personally or by proxy or attorney and voting at the meeting.

46. Legal Effect of Rules

- 46.1 These Rules are governed by and are to be construed in accordance with the laws of New South Wales.
- 46.2 Each Member is deemed to have knowledge of the terms of these Rules and is bound by them in accordance with section 11(2) of the Act.

47. Interpretation

- 47.1 In the event of any question arising as to the interpretation or application of any of these Rules, such question shall be decided by the President who shall report his decision to the next meeting of the Council which shall have power of confirmation or revision.
- 47.2 The decision of the Council under **Rule 47.1** shall be final.

48. Notices

- 48.1 For the purposes of these Rules, a notice may be served on or given to a Member by:
- (a) serving it personally;
 - (b) sending it by post in a pre-paid envelope or wrapper addressed to the Member at the address for that Member as shown in the Register or the address supplied from time to time by that Member to the Society for the giving of notices to that Member;

- (c) sending it by facsimile to the facsimile number (if any) supplied by that Member to the Society for the giving of notices; or
 - (d) sending it by electronic means to an electronic address (if any) supplied by that Member to the Society for the giving of notices.
- 48.2 Unless the contrary is proved, any notice sent by post shall be deemed to have been served on the day when it would have been delivered in the ordinary course of the post and in proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that the letter, envelope or wrapper containing the notice was properly addressed and stamped and put into the post. A certificate signed by the Honorary Secretary that the letter, envelope or wrapper containing the notice was so addressed, stamped and posted shall be conclusive evidence thereof.
- 48.3 Where a notice is sent by facsimile, unless the contrary is proved, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected at the time of its successful transmission as indicated by the appearance of the correct facsimile number (or another number to which the transmission is reasonably presumed to have been diverted) on the transmission report generated by the sender's facsimile machine.
- 48.4 Where a notice is sent electronically, unless the contrary is proved, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected at the time it is sent by the Society.
- 48.5 The fact that a Member has supplied a facsimile number or electronic address to the Society for the giving of notices does not oblige the Society to give notices to that Member by facsimile or electronic means.
- 48.6 A signature on any notice to be given by the Society may be written or printed.
- 48.7 Where a given number of days' notice or notice extending over any other period is required to be given, the day of service shall be counted in such number of days or other period.

49. By-Laws

The Council may make by-laws for the regulation of the affairs of the Society, including the Council, consistent with the Rules and the Objects. Such by-laws shall be tabled at the next following Annual General Meeting when they shall be confirmed, amended or rescinded by a simple majority of Members present in person or by proxy or attorney.

50. Alteration or Rescission of Rules

These Rules may be altered, rescinded or added to only by Special Resolution.



**Australian and New Zealand
Society for Geriatric Medicine Inc.**
145 Macquarie St Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Phone: (61-2) 9256 5460 Fax: (61-2) 9241 3458
Email: admin@anzsgm.org
Website: <http://www.anzsgm.org>

MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION FORM

SURNAME: GIVEN NAME(S):
Please print clearly

TITLE: (please tick) Dr . Prof. Assoc. Prof. . SEX: Male: . Female: . DATE OF BIRTH:/...../.....

AUSTRALIAN HEALTH PRACTITIONER REGULATION AGENCY REGISTRATION NUMBER:.....

NEW ZEALAND MEDICAL COUNCIL NUMBER:.....

TRAINEES – State Year of training: ..

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: Home / Work (Please circle):

STATE: POSTCODE: COUNTRY:.....

PHONE:..... FAX: E-MAIL:

PRESENT EMPLOYMENT / POSITION(S):.....

QUALIFICATIONS: (Include Degrees, Diplomas; Part I FRACP and College Affiliations)

Qualification	Year Awarded	Awarding Institution
.....
.....
.....
.....
.....
.....
.....
.....

TYPE OF MEMBERSHIP REQUESTED: FULL . TRAINEE . OVERSEAS . ASSOCIATE .

MEMBERSHIP CATEGORIES:

- FULL MEMBERSHIP: Medical practitioners who are committed to clinical practice, research, education and administration in geriatric medicine and closely allied disciplines. This will include Medical Practitioners who are recognised within Geriatrics (especially in NZ) as Senior Medical Officers (other titles include Career Medical Officers). The requirements for full membership shall be prescribed by the Council from time to time as it sees fit.
- TRAINEE MEMBERSHIP: Medical practitioners currently registered in a training program in geriatric medicine and related disciplines.
- OVERSEAS MEMBERSHIP: Registered medical practitioners primarily resident in places other than Australia and New Zealand who demonstrate a commitment to clinical practice, research, education and administration in geriatric medicine and closely allied disciplines.
- ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP: General practitioners with an interest in geriatric medicine.

PROPOSED BY: NAME:..... SIGNATURE:.....
(Proposer must be a Full Member of the Society)

I seek Membership of the Society, in the category indicated above. I acknowledge that upon my admission to Membership, I will be bound by the Rules of the Society as in force from time to time.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: DATE:/...../.....

Membership applications can take several months to process due to meeting timetabling. Privileges of membership will not be available until the application is approved and subscriptions are paid.

This application should be forwarded to The Honorary Secretary at the following address:
The Secretary, Australian and New Zealand Society for Geriatric Medicine Inc. 145 Macquarie Street, Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
DO NOT ENCLOSE PAYMENT WITH THIS APPLICATION

Proxy Form

I,

Please print

residing at

being a Voting Member (i.e. Full, Retired, Honorary Life Membership Categories) of the AUSTRALIAN AND NEW ZEALAND SOCIETY FOR GERIATRIC MEDICINE INC.

Hereby appoint

Please print

of

OR in his/her absence the Chairman of the meeting, as my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the Annual/Special General Meeting to be held on *Date of AGM/SGM* and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this

day of 20--

Signature:

NOTE: The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing. A proxy must be a Member of the Society.

*This proxy form should be sent to the ANZSGM Secretariat to arrive
no later than 5pm EST on (Date)*

Post to:

The Honorary Secretary
ANZSGM
145 Macquarie Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000
AUSTRALIA

OR

Fax to:

+61 2 9241 3458